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Independent Auditors' Report

To the Honorable Board of Selectmen
Town of Natick, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Town of Natick, Massachusetts, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 (except for the
Natick Contributory Retirement System, which is as of and for the year ended December g'1.,2009), which
collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Town of Natick, Massachusetts' management. Our responsibility is to
exPress an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of
the Morse Institute in Natick, a discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements were audited by
another auditor whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included in these financial statements, is based solely on the report of the other auditor.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gouernment Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The
financial statements of the Morse Institute in Natick were not audited in accordance with Gouernment Auditing
Standards, An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit and the report of the other auditor provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As more fully described in Note 1, the financial statements of the Morse Institute in Natick were prepared on the
cash basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In our opinion, based on the report of the other auditor, the financial statements of the Morse Institute in Natick
referred to above, Presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Morse Institute in Natick as
of June 30,20L0, and the change in financial position for the year then ended in conformity with the basis of
accounting as described in Note 1.



In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Natick, Massachusetts, as of june 30, 2010 (except for the
Natick Contributory Retirement System, which is as of and for the year ended December 31.,2009), and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Gouernment Auditing Standørds, we have also issued our report dated March 9,2011., on our
consideration of the Town of Natick, Massachusetts' internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing and not provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the managemenfs
discussion and analysis (located on pages 4 through 13) and budgetary comparison and pension ifformation
(located on Pages 61 through 65) be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with managemenf s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
exPress an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

March 9,2077
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Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

As management of the Town of Natick, Massachusetts (Town), we offer readers of these financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the Town's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

Finønciøl Highlights

The assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by 61,02,492,634
(net assets). Of this amount, 612,276,016 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the governmenf s

ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The Town's total net assets decreased by 96,336,267.

As of the close of the fiscal year, the Town's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances totaling $23,566,898, a decrease of fi4,772,202 in comparison with the prior year, Approximately
920,527,000 represents unreserved fund balance of the general fund, special revenue, nonmajor capital
projects and permanent funds. The High School project fund deficit of $2,927,006 will be funded by
proceeds of long-term debt in future fiscal years.

At the end of the fiscal year, undesignated fund balance for the general fund totaled $4,478,478, or 4.2
percent of total general fund expenditures and transfers out.

The Town's total bonded debt decreased by 97,128,445 during the fiscal year. The Town issued 95,524,385
of new debt during the year for building remodeling, departmental equipment, sewer projects and water
mains lining.

Oaeroiew of the Bøsic Finønciøl Støtements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic finonciql støtements, which consists
of the following three components:

1. Government-widefinancial statements
2. Fund financial statements
3. Notes to the basic financial statements.

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

G overnment-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town's
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town's non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes, earned
but unused vacation leave, etc.).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (gouernmental øctiaities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type øctiuities).
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Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Governmental activities include general government, public safety, education, public works, health and human
services, culture and recreation and debt service (interest). Business-type activities include the Town's water and
sewer and golf course operations.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 15-17 of this report.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into
the following categories and are described below:

1. Governmental funds
2. Proprietary funds
3. Fiduciary funds

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of expendable resources, as
well as on balances of expendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a governmenfs near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar hformation presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term effect of the governmenfs near-term financing decisions. Both the govetnmental funds
balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town maintains 48 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances for the general and high school project (capital project) funds, each of which are considered to be major
funds. Data from the other 46 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation titled
nonm øj or g ou ernmen t al fun d s.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 78-27 of this report.

Proprietary funds

The Town maintains two types of proprietary funds.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The Town uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer and golf course
operations/ water and sewer is considered to be major fund.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 22-24 of this report.
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ls Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Fiduciary funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those
funds are not available to support the Town's programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is similar to
that used for proprietary funds.

The fiduciary funds provide separate information for the Town's pension trust fund. Private-purpose trust funds
and agency funds are reported and combined into a single, aggregate presentation in the fiduciary fund financial
statements under the captions "private purpose trust funds" and" agency funds", respectively.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 25-26 of this report.

Notes to the basic financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 27-
60 of this report.

Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information. Presented in this information is the budget comparison for the general fund and
certain pension information, which can be found on pages 61-65.

G oa ernment-Wide Finønci øl Anøly si s

The following tables present current and prior year data on the government-wide financial statements.

Net Assets

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a governmenf s financial position. The
Town's assets exceeded liabilitiesby $1,02,492,634 atthe close of the fiscal year and are summarized as follows:

Town of Nøtick, Møssøchusetts Req uired Supplement øry Informøtion



Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended june 30, 2010

G oa en u n eil t sI Act ia itie s Brrsire s s-Typ e A ctiai tie s

2010

Assets

Current assels...

Noncurrent assets (excluding

capital assets)....

Capital assets (net)

Total assets. . .. . .

Liabilities

Current liabilities

(excluding debt).

Noncur¡ent liabilities

(excluding debt).

Cutrent debt.........
Noncurent debt...,. .

Total liabiiities..

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets

(net ofrelated debt) .. .., ....
Restricted...,..

Umestricted

Total net assets.

$ 40,195,646 $ 40,514,350

5,596,574 6,234,290

94,996,459 90,933,051

"140,788,679 737,687,69't

$ 1i,502,036

2,064,"t60

35,998,26t

49,564,457

11,083,198 $

2,275,659

35,609,688

48,908,545

57,697,682 $

7,660,734
"t30,994,720

^r90,353,"136

"t0,797,639

18,009,692

10,044,518

49,614,653

57,597,548

8,449,949

t26,542,739

786,590,236

9,797,262

"17,608,854

8,082,47^t

34,674,306

6,356,847

9,738,408

7,739,529

35,959,777

394,377

400,838

1,962,047

L4,940,347

387,635

22'0,829

2,433,307

t4,925,009

6,744,482

9,959,237

10,172,830

50,884,786

70,162,893 59,794,567

64,200,225 60,556,120

4,222,372 5,472,452

2,203,189 11,858,558

70.625,786

77,697,609 77,966,774

27,794,027 20,966,608

70,072,827 9,975,163

87,860,502 77 ,767,335

85,994,246

L ))) a1)

72,276,0"16

8t,522,728

5,472,452

27,833,72^t

30,941,,777

The largest Portion of the Town's net assets (839%) reflects its investment rn capital assets (e.g., land, construction
in progress, land improvements, buildings, machinery and equipment, vehicles ,library books and infrastructure),
less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. These capital assets are used to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town's net assets (4.1%) represents resources that are subject to external reshictions
on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets (12.0% or fi1.2,276,016) may be used to
meet the Town's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Of this amount, fi2,203,189 may be used to support
governmental activities and970,072,827 may be used to support business-type activities,

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town reports positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both
for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.

Changes in Net Assets

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the Town's total net assets decreased by 96,336,267, compared to a

decrease of $3,062,418 in the prior fiscal year. These amounts are summarized as follows:

$ n,887,730 $ 31,866,848 $ g 102,492,634 $ 108,828,901
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Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended june 30, 2010

G o! eñt ne ntøl ActiT) it ¡es

2010 2009

Br s ire s s -T y p e A ctitt it ie s

2070

Tot4l

2009

Revenues

Progrnm Retenrcs:

Charges for seruices...

Operating grants and contributioro ,, .. . ,

Capital granfs and contributioN .... . .

Genernl Rercnues:

Real estate and personal property taxes

Nlotor vehicle and other exc¡se taxes

Hotel/motel faxes .. .

Penalties and interest on taxes, , ,.. , , ....

Payments in lieu of taxes ,., ,. .

Grants and contributioro not ¡estricted

to specific programs,....

Unrestrictedinvestmentincome....,..
Othe¡,.....

Total revenues... , ,

Expenses

Ceneral govement, , ,. .

Public safety

Educa tion

Public works.

Health and human seruices ... . ...
Culture and recrealion ...,...
Library..
Debt seflice - interest......

Water and Sewe¡.. .... ...

Colf ..

"t1,4,995,328 776,347,799

8,794,557

27,982,726

7,420,658

73,480,870

3,734,n2

748,707

351,613

28,292

3,889,765

462,957

100,411

5,621,M0

I 9,608,515

79,598,368

70,439,353

2,136,225

2,717,587

2,973,962

7,854,644

9,526,893

20,701,762

914,330

74,835,978

3,934,228

833,846

532,254

717,635

4,596,670

354,263

"t3,387,342

190,630

t4,570,576

736,019

22,18"t,899

22,773,356

7,420,658

73,480,870

3,734,772

748,707

351,613

28,292

3,889,765

462,957

100,411

24,097,469

20,837,787

974,330

74,835,978

3,934,228

833,846

532,254

777,635

4,596,670

354,263

7,08t,409

19,805,403

n349,s02
10,i45,559

2,266,468

2,768,205

2,8"t7,469

1,9U,200

73,577,972

9,825,677

793.808

14,706,595 728,573,300 737,054,394

7,081,409

79,805,403

77,U9,502

10,i45,559

2,266,468

2,768,205

2,877,469

7,984,200

9,666,094

832.s03

9,666,094

832,503

5,627,440

79,608,575

79,598,368

70,439,353

2,736,225

2,777,587

2,973,962

7,854,644

9,825,677

793,808

Tolal expenses.

Change in net assets b€fote transfers,

't24,290,088 723,678,215 "t0,619,479

2,958,493

(2,033,476) (2,776,872'

10,498,597 734.909,567 134,776.872

4,207,998 (6,336,26n (3,062,4781

Trarofers, net. ....

Change in net assets.

Net assets - begiming of year (as restated)

Net assets - end of year

v,267f/4\ (s,093,604) 925,077 2,037,186

(9,294,760)

2,033,476

77,887,730

70,625,786

(7,270,4'\6)

2,776,872

$ n,887,730 $ 31,866,848 S 30,947,771 $

28,910,585

(6,336,267'

108,828,90"1

(3,062,478)

111,891,319

108,828,901

82,980,7U 30,947,77"1

102,492,634 $

Governmental activities decreased the Town's net assets by $7,261,,3M. In the prior year, governmental activities
decreased the Town's net assets by $5,093,604. The key element of this change is a decrease in real estate and
personal Property tax revenue of approximately $1,355,000 due to an increase in tax ïefunds payable.

Business-tyPe activities increased the Town's net assets by fi925,077. In the prior yeat, business-type activities
increased the Town's net assets by $2,031.,186. The key element of this change is a decrease in water and sewer
charges for services due to decreased consumption in fiscal year 2010.

Town of Nøtick, Møssøchusetts Required Supplementøry Information



Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended ]une 30, 2010

Fund E inønciøl Støtmrcnt Anøly sis

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds

The focus of the governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a governmenf s net resources available for spending at
the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances totaling
923,566,898, a decrease of $4,772,302 in comparison with the prior yeat. 63.6o/' of this total amount (914,985,829)
represents undesignated fund balance of the general fund, special revenue, nonmajor capital projects and
permanent funds. The High School project fund deficit of fi2,927,006 will be funded by proceeds of long-term
debt in future fiscal years. The remainder of fund balance is designated or reserved to indicate that it is not
available for new spending because it has already been committed to:

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current fiscal year, undesignated fund
balance of the general fund totaled 94,478,478, while total fund balance was 911,786,978. As a measure of the
general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both undesignated fund balance and total fund balance to
total general fund expenditures and transfers out. Undesignated fund balance represents 4.2% of total general
fund expenditures and transfers out, while total fund balance represents 17.0% of that same amount.

The balance of the Town's general fund decreased by $1,285,658 during fiscal year 2010. Although the Town
recognized an approximate $5,582,000 budgetary surplus (excluding encumbrances and continuing
appropriations), approximately 94,425,000 of reserves was utilized for spending during the fiscal year. In
addition, estimated abatements increased approximately $3,200,000.

Financial highlights of the Town's other major governmental fund is as follows:

The fund balance of the high school project fund (capital project) decreased by $2,766,488 during the current fiscal
year. The fund recognized $30,000 of transfers in from the general fund. Expenditures of $2,796,488 were
incurred during the current year.

Proprietar)¡ funds

The Town's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the water and sewer and golf course enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to
59,957,645 and $115,182, respectively. The water and sewer and golf course enterprise funds both had an increase
in net assets for the year; $790,572 and $134,505, respectively. Other factors concerning the finances of these two
funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the Town's business-type activities.

Town of Nøtick, Møssøchusetts 10 Req uire d Supplementøry Inf ormøtion



Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended ]une 30, 2010

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The original general fund budget of $99,802,567 was increased by $1,948,820 (2.0%) during the year. The
following table summarizes the increase:

Purpose of Increase Amount Funding Source

Court judgment in fair labor standards act (FLSA)....... g 950,751 Tax levy and transfers
Transfer to stabilization fund. 650,000 Tax levy and transfers
Police salary expense. 200,689 Tax levy and transfers
Various DPW capital related items.. 747,380 Undesignated fund balance

During the year, general fund revenues exceeded budgetary estimates, while expenditures and encumbrances
and continuing appropriations were less than budgeted appropriations, resulting in a positive budget to actual
variance of approximately $3,815,000. Encumbrances and continuing appropriations total approximately
91,,7 67,000 at year-end.

Cøpitøl Asset ønd D ebt Administrøtion

Capital assets

The Town's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities at the end of the fiscal
year totaled 5130,994,720 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
construction in progress, land improvements, buildings, machinery and equipment, vehicles ,llbrary books and
infrastructure. The total increase in the investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year totaled $4,451.,987 or
3.5'/" (a3.2% increase for governmental activities and a 0.3% increase for busi¡ess-type activities).

Major capital asset events that occurred during the current fiscal year include the following:

Town of Nøtick, Møssøchusetts 11 Re quire d S uppl ement øry lnformøtion



Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

The following table summarizes the Town's capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Gou e rnm ents I Ac tiaitie s B u sine s s-T y p e A ctit i t í e s

2010 2010

Land............... $

Conshuction in progress... ... ...

Land improvemenß.
Buildings

Machinery and equipment ........
Vehicles

Library books

Inllastructure.. . .

Total capital assets .. . $

$ 1,053,254 $ 1,053,2s4 $70,124,'124

6,767,077

"t,014,621

58,745,675

"1,667,135

2,944,720

866,644
-12,866,463

"t0,"r24,"124

7,728,557

1,085,333

58,798,945

7,657,263

3,344,996

880,190

"t3,313,643

3,840,448

2,075,404
'L^12,981

236,420

557,306

3,707,055

2,'165,739
"115,994

284,928

359,981

7^1,-t77,378 $

10,607,525

3,090,025

58,858,656

1,903,555

3,502,026

866,644

1"1,777,378

5,435,6"t2

3,250,472

58,974,939

7,942,791

3,704,977

880,190

28,"t22,448 27,923,337 40,988,9"t-t 4'1,',236,980

g 35,998,267 $ 3s,609,688 $ "ß0,994,720 $ 726,542,73994,996,4s9 $ 90,933,051

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 42-44 of this report.

Long-Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, total bonded debt outstanding was 956,409,171, which is backed by the full
faith and credit of the Town, and is summarized as follows:

G oa emmentøl Ac tiui ti e s B usine s s -Ty p e Actio iti e s

2010 2009 2010

Generalobligationbonds. ....., S 39,728,694 $ 40,35t,763 $

MWRA notes
12,568,306 $

77,38s

4,2s6,703

12,21,8,237 $

67,650

4,472,423

51,697,000 $ 52,570,000

77,385 67,650

MWPAT notes

Total bonds and notes. . ... ., . . .

378,083 427,543 4,634,786 4,899,966

s 39,506,777 $ 40,779,306 s 16,902,394 $ 16,758,310 $ 56,409,171 $ 57,537,616

The Town's total bonded debt decreased by 97,728,M5 (2.0%) during the current fiscal year. $5,524,385 of new
debt was issued during the year for building remodeling, departmental equipment, sewer projects and water
mains lining.

The Town received an AAA rating from Standard & Poor's for its most recent issuance of long-term debt on June
70,2070.

Additional information on the Town's long-term debt can be found in Note 9 on page 47-54 of this report.

Tozan of Nøtick, Massachusetts l2 Required S upplementary Informøtion



Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20L0

Economic F øctors qnd N ext Y eør's Budgets

Natick, like all communities in America, continued to deal with the impact of a lingering recession during fiscal
year 201.0. Although unemployment in Natick remained far below the national average (5A% n October 2010
compared to a nationally non-seasonally adjusted level of 9.0% unemployment), citizens and the Town of Natick
alike faced significant challenges in maintain the standard of living and services which many had grown
accustom to.

Fiscal year 2010 found the Town of Natick having to rely on less state aid than in the previous year - by nearly
$1,700,000. This decreased aid resulted in service reductions in several areas of the budget and the use of one-time
Federal Stimulus dollars to maintain services within the Natick Public Schools. The purchasing and hiring freezes
implemented in fiscal year 2009 were maintained throughout fiscal year 20L0 in order to produce as much fund
balance at the end of the year as possible to provide the community with a fighting chance to sustain services in
fiscal year 2011., fiscalyear 201,2 and beyond with no immediate end to the recession in sight. These efforts were
successful.

The development of the fiscal year 2011general budget began similar to fiscal year 201.0 with further state aid
reductions forecast and the Town facing a multi-million dollar budget deficit. Given the limitations of proposition
21/z,Massachusetts communities like Natick are limited to the rate of increase in base property taxes annually to
21/zpercent. This places a large burden on other revenue categories to be as robust as possible to maintain
government services. Unfortunately, local receipts remained effectively flat and state aid was forecast to decline.
As a result, general government and education services were pared back again and contract settlements delayed
in order to obtain health care concessions. Fortunately, after the start of fiscal year 2011,15 of the town's 17
unions agreed to changes in their health care provisions which will save the Town money in the long-run. That
change, combined with higher state aid than originally anticipated resulted in a fiscal year 201.L budget which
actually maintained most services and built reserves.

Re qu e st s for lnformøti on

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town's finances for all those with an
interest in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Director, Town Hall, 13 East Central Street,
Natick, Massachuse tts 017 60.

Town of Nøtick, Møssøchusetts 13 Re quire d Suppl ementøry lnformøtion
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

TUNE 30,2O1O

Primary Govemmenl
Component

Unit

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents. ..... . $
Restricted cash and cash equivaìents....,..
Investments
Receivables, net of al¡owance for uncollectjb¡e amounts:

Real esfate and personal properÇ taxes .. .

Tax, trash and uti¡ity liens
lvlotor vehicle and other exc¡se taxes.. ..
User charges

Special assessments ...
Departmental and other
Intergovernmental.

Internal balances. .,...,
lnventory,,..

Noncurrent assets:

Receivables, net ofallowance for uncollectib¡e amounts:
Real estate tax deferrals
Spec¡al assessments......
Intergovemmental ...,

Capital assets not being depreciated ,., .. .

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,

Total noncurrent assets . ..

Total assets .

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Warrants payable. ......,..
Accrued payroll
Tax refunds payabJe...........
Other ¡iabilities...
Accrued interest
Workers' compensation c|aims,,.,,.,..,
Landfill postclosure. .. ......
Compensated absences . ..,..
Short-term notes payable ,. .

Long-term bonds and no|es payable

Total currenl liabil ities

Noncurrenl Iiabilit¡es:
Workers' compensation claims,. .,,
Landfill postclosure,., ..
Net OPEB obl¡gation,..... ..,..,.
Compensated absences.,,..
Long-term bonds and notes payable..,..,

40,195,646 11,502,036

269,881
233,809

5,092,8U
16,891,201

78,105,258

_ 269,881

2,007,108 2,240,917

57,052 5,149,936

4,893,702 21,784,903

31,104,559 109,209,817

Governmental
Activ ities

Business-type
Activities

4,686,655

2641,102

167,919

3,437,603

145,453

419,447

3,857

"t28,505

34,548

226,404

4,920

1,962,047

37,552,927 $
3,294,894

1,738,637
'l,695,547

271,151

28,686

341,316

1,691,935
(419,44n

5 36,239,582

5,935,996

1,738,637

1,863,466

271,151

3,437,603
't74,139

341,316

1,691,935

3,857

57,697,682

lvlo rse

Institute

5 366,686

1,60.r,53s

't,968,221

Total

100,593,033 3a,062,421 138,655,454

140,788,679 49,564,457 190,353,136 1,968,22'l

2,007,616

741,87"1

4,424,604
't,756,463

595,395

87,539
34,043

149,731

3,250,000

4,832,471

17,879,733

87,539

5M,688
15,629,046

1,347,581

34,674,306

52,283,160

70,162,893

64,200,225

'l,713,604

)a aoa

13,959

2472,012
2,203,189

$ 70,625.786

2,736,727

776,419
4,424,604

1,756,463

821,799

87,539

u,043
154,651

3,250,000

6,794,5t8

2,356,424 20,236,157

Totalnoncurrentliabilities. . ... ......

TotdÌ net dssel.s.

356,561

M,2n
14,940,347

75,341,185

17,697,609

21,794,021

10,072827

$ 31,866,848

87,539

544,688

15,985,607

1,391,858
49,614,653

67,624345

87,860,502

85,994,246

1,713,604

22797
13,959

2,472,012

12,276,016

s '102,492,634

939,302

1,D28,919

s 1,968,221

Totdl l¡abililies .....

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restr¡cted fo¡:

Debt service . . .. .

Permanent funds:
Expendable.
Nonexpendable

See notes to basic financial statements

't5Touil of Nrtick, Misstclttsetts Bnsic Eitwcinl Stnteilrcilts



STATEMENT OF ACTTVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2O1O

Program Revenues

Functions/ Prog¡am
Primary government:

Govemmental activities:
General government... .............,

Charges for
Services

Operating
G¡ants and

Contributions

Capital
Grants and

Conhibutions

34"r,6U
7,078,974

Net
(Expense)/
RevenueExpenses

fi 5,621,M0
19,608,515

79,s98,368

10,439,353

2,736,225

2,7^17,581

2,973,962
"1,854,644

9,82s,677

793,808

Public safety.
Education...
Public works.....
Health and human services..
Culture and ¡ecreation....,.
Library..
Debt service - interest.... ...

g 7,258,669

2,464,679

2,740,862

1,,092,229

1.80,609

982,396

75,773

$ 464,278 $
278,375

20,838,383
^12,206

276,866

72,710

88,513

11,995

$ (3,8e8,493)

(76,865,461)

(s5,677,439)
(8,25s,e44)

(1,738,750\
(t,063,07s)
(2,7s0,336)
(1,842,649)

Total governmental activities... 724,290,088 8,794,557 27,982,z26 1,420,6s8 (næZl4n

Busìness-type activities:
Water and Sewer 190,630

Total business-type activities, . . . . . 't0,61,9,429 73,382,342 790,63;0

Total primary government... S 134,909,567 6 22,j.Bt,ggg $ 22,173,356

Component units:
Morse Institute..

See notes to basic financial statements.

$ 778,693 g 7,878 $ 301,909

"12,874,029

573,373
3,778,988
(220,4e5)

Town of Nøtick, Massøchilsetts L6 B øs i c F inanciø I S tøtemelt s



STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)

FOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Primary Govemment

Govemmental
Activities

Business-type
Activìties

Component
Unit

Changes in net assets:

Net (expense)/revenue (from previous page).................

Genernl reaenues:

Real estate and personal property taxes. ...... . ........ . . . ,

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes....
Hotel/motel taxes.............
Penalties and inte¡est on taxes . . . . ... ..,. .

Payments in lieu of taxes.............
Grants a¡d contributions not reshicted to
specific progtaÍìs.......

Urueshicted investment income. . , .......... .

Other,...........
Trmsfers, net ..... ,...... . . . .

Total general revenues a¡d tra¡sfers..

Change in net assets. . ..

Net assets - beginning of year.........,.

Net assets - end of year... $ 31,866,848 $ 102,492,634 fi 1,968,221

$ (e2,0v2þn fi

73,480,870
3,734,772

748,707

357,673

28,292

3,889,765

462,957

100,411

2,033,4'16

$ (89,133,654)

73,480,870

3,734,772
748,707

351,613

28,292

3,889,765

462,957

100,411

$ 131,031

(2,033,416)

84,830,803 (2,033,476)

925,077

30,947,771

82,797,387

(7,267,3M)

77,887,730

(6,336,26n

108,828,901

73r,034

1,837,787

s 70,625,786
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30,2010

ASSETS

Cashandcashequivalents.......,..... .. .. ....... $
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Real estate and personal property taxes. .. .. . ... .

Real estate tax deferrals,.
Tax and trash liens. .. .. ..

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes. .. ..... .. .

Special assessments... .................
Departmental and other. .. , .. ..

Intergovernmental......
Resbricted assets:

High School

Project Fund

Cash and cash equivalents,.. . .... 7&,595

General

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

1,9,007,478 $

1.,738,637

269,881.
"1,695,547

271.,757

9"r,865

347,3't6
5,774,920

12,545,509 fi

170,630

7,009,899

3,730,299

37,552,927

7,738,637
269,88r

1.,695,547

27't,75't
262,495

347,376

6,784,819

3,294,894

TOTAL ASSETS...,..

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Warrants payable....., . .................. .. ... $ 621,727
Accrued payroll. .. 688,b35
Tax refunds payable..... 4,424,604
Other liabilities 7,375,3-12
Deferred revenue 9,874,-138
Due to other funds. 41,9,M7
Short-term notes payable.,

TOTAL LIABILITIES .

FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:

Encumbrances and continuing appropriaLions.,..... ..

$ 29,190,735 164,595 $ 16,856,337 $ 46,271,667

5 840,476
-1,1.25

2,250,000

545,41.9 6

52,2'I'l

381,151
-170,630

1,000,000

2,007,676

741,877
4,424,604
1.,756,463

1.0,044,768

4t9,447
3,250,000

17,403,757 3,09"t,607

Debt service,..
Perpetual permanent funds.. ..

Other specific purposes... .....
Unreserved:

Designated for stabilization. .. .

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures.... ..

Undesignated, reported in:
Gene¡al fund... ............... .

Special revenue funds...
Capital projects funds................., (2,927,006)
Permanent funds

TOTAL FUND BALANCES... .,....... "r1.,786,978 (2,927,006) 14,706,926

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES,

See notes to basic financial statements.

$ 29,L90,735 $ 764,595 $ 16,856,337 fi

1,766,928

2880,813
2,660,759

4,478,478

2,749,477 22,6M,769

"1,766,928

1.,7-13,604

73,959
2,472,J.12

2880,813
2,660,759

4,478,478

8,625,037

(7,067,489)

22,797

7,773,604
13,959

2,472,072

8,625,037
'1,859,5-17

)) 7q7

23,566,898

46,2t1.,667

Town of Natick, Møssøchusetts 18 Bøsic Finønciq I Støtements



RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30,2010

Total governmental fund balances (page 18)...... ...... $ 23,566,898

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds......... 94,996,459

Other assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
tlrerefore, are deferred in the governmental funds........... 1,0,0M,768

In the statement of net assets. interest is accrued on outstanding long-term deb!
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due.... (595,395)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in t}re current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Bonds and notes payable (39,506,77n
Workers' compensation c1aims....,..... (175,078)
Landfill postclosure.,. (578,731)
Net OPEB obligation..... (1,5,629,046)
Compensated absences....... (7,497,312)

Netassetsof governmentalactivities(page15)..,... .. ......,..,........ $ 70,625,786

See notes to basic financial statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2O1O

High School
Ceneral Proiect Fund

72,625,991 $ -
3,735,1.99

748,707

336,155

28,292

903,950
20,"130,374

22,227

351.,613
't,256,7"t9

154,309

2,490,076

469,692

1.00,4t"1

3,889,685
"t1,766,383

43,675,639 2,796,488
7,465,974

927,235

568,693

1,81.5,004
"t4,518,621

13,660,686

431.,162

1,362,563

Nomajor Total
Governmental Governmental

Funds Funds
REVENUES

Real estate and personal property taxes... ... . . .. .. .. .. $
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.. .

Hotel/rnotel tax .. . , .. .. . .

Tax and hash liens..
Payments in lieu of taxes
Trash disposal..
Intergovernmental .. . , . ... .. .. ... .

Special assessments... ..

Penalties and interest on taxes
Licenses ancl permits. ..

Fines and forfeitu¡es. .. .

Departmental and other. .. ..

Contributions.
Investment income... . ... . . . .. .. .

Other. .. .. . .. .

TOTAL OTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES). . ........

NETCHANGE IN FUND BALANCES,..,.

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINN]NG OF YEAR (AS RESTATED) .,.

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

See notes to basic financial statements.

11,703,023 775,056,732

s 72,625,991

3,735,799

748,707

336,155

28,292

903,9s0

27,378,957

48,67-t

351,613

1,256,71.9

235,454
6,509,579

280,757

5-16,943
"100,47-l

4,999,828

1.2,530,765

57,064,043

9,239,-t57
-1,L87,673

7,634,91.6

2,004,596

74,518,621

13,709,89-r

437,1.62

7,362,563

4,819,529
"r,926,537

7,248,583

26,450

81,145

4,01.9,443

280,151

47,251.

TOTAL REVENUPS .,.,,.,.,..

EXPENDITURES
Current:

103,353,709

General government..,.
Public safety.. ..

Education
Public works.
Health and human services
Culture and recreation.
Library... ..

Pension benefits
Employee benefits.. . .. . .. .

Property and liability iruurance. ..

State and county charges. . .. ..

Debt service:
Principal 4,8'1,9,529
Interest.....,.. 7,926,532

TOTAL EXPENDITURES. . ,. , 1,06,827,771 2,796,488

EXCESS (DEFICIENCÐ OF REVENUES
ovER EXPENDTTURES p,474,002) (2,796,488)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 2,716,997 30,000

1.,'110,743

763,782

10,597,976
-1,773,183

260,438
"1,066,223

789,592

49,205

"15,804,482 725,428,681

(4,"r01.,45e) (10,37"r,e49)

Proceeds of bonds and notes.
Sale of capital assets...

(1,285,6s8)

t3,072,636

(2,766,488)

(160.s18)

143,653

3,547,000

79,237

(720,1.s6)

15,427,082

2,890,650

3,547,000

19,237

(4,772,302)

28,339,200

$ 2i,s66,898

2,188,3M 30,000

(328,s81) (857,234)

3,387,303 5,599,647

74,706,926

Tozun of Natìck, Massøchusetts

fi ____11239,e73_ fi ____p,e21_,006)_ fi
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,201,0

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 20)..............

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. These amounts represent the related activity
of the current period.

Capital outlays........
Depreciation.

In the statement of activities, only the gøity'(loss) on the disposal of capital assets is reported,
whereas in the governmental funds the proceeds (if applicable) of the disposal are
reported as financial resources. As a resulç the change in net assets differs from the change
in fund balance by the net book value of the capital assets disposed............

Revenues in the statement of acfivities that do not provide current financial resources
are fully deferred in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various types of accounts receivable
(i.e,, real estate and personal property, moto¡ vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the
two statements. This amount represents the net change in deferred revenue........

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
impact on net assets. Also, governmental funds report tle effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. These amounts represent the
related activity of t}re current period.

Bond proceeds

Bond maturities.

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding tong-term deb!
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due. This amount
represents the net change in accrued interest payable

Some expenses reported in the statement activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds,
These amounts represent the net changes:

Workers' compensation
Landfill postclosure
Net OPEB obligation
Compensated absences

Changes in net assets of governmental activities (page 17)... . . .

See notes to basic financial statements.

(4,772,302)

8,089,933
(4,004,056)

(22,469)

(61.,404)

(3,547,000)
4,8"t9,529

71,,892

80,752

34,043
(7,896,303)

(53,ese)

5 (7,261.,344)
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PROPRIETARYzuNDS
STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2010

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cashandcashequivalents,.................. .,............ $
Restricted cash and cash equivalents. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Utility liens.....
User charges.,.
Special assessments.

Due from other funds.,.....

Total current assets..

Noncurrent assets:

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Special assessments.. .. .. , ..

Intergovernmental
Capital assets not being depreciated,
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.. . . .

Total noncurrent assets.. , .. . .

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Warrants payable.,...
Acc¡ued payroll.
Accrued interest. .......
Compensated absences
Long-term bonds and notes payable..

Total current liabilities.... , .

Noncurrent liabilities:
Net OPEB obligabion,
Compensated absences..
Long-term bonds and notes payable.,. . .

Total noncurrent liabili ties.

Total liabilities .

FUND NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt, . ..
Unrestricted

Total net assets... . .. .. ..

See notes to basic financial statements.

Inventory. . ..

Water and

Sewer

Nonmajor

Golf Total

4,686,655

2,647,102

767,979
3,437,603

745,453
419,M7

3,857

4,480,829

2,629,984

1.67,9"19

3,437,603

745,453
479,447

205,826 $
11,1'18

3,857

77,28-1,235

2,007,'t08

57,052
4,279,703

29,062,667

35,346,530

46,627,765 2,936,692

220,80'l 1'1,502,036

- 2,007,1.08

57,052
673,999 4,893,702

2,047,892 31.,1.04,559

2,71.5,891 38,062,421

49,564,457

94,859

34,548
1.99,523

4,920

33,646

26,887

728,505

34,548
226,404

4,920

1,9620477,766,1"17 195,930

2,099,967 256,457 2,356,424

322,587
44,277

72,909,97-l

33,974

2,030,376

356,567
44,277

74,940,347

"13,276,835 2,064,350 15,341,185

1.5,376,802 2,320,807 17,697,609

2r,293,378
9,957,645

500,703

115,782
27,794,027
1.0,072,827

$ 37,250,963 $ 61s,88s $ 37,866,848

Town of Natick, MøssøchuseHs B ø s i c F in øn ci ø I St øt ements



PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED IUNE 30,2O1O

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water and

Sewer

Nonmajor
Golf Total

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services...

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of service and administ¡ation....,,..
MWRA assessment.
Repairs and maintenance..............
Depreciation.

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES...

OPERATTNG TNCOME (LOSS).........

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intergovernmental
Investment income
Interest expense....

TOTAL NONOPERATTNG REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET,.... . ..

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS
Transfers in..............,.
Transfers out.,............

TOTAL TRANSFERS

CHANGE IN FUND NET ASSETS

FUND NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR..........

FUND NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR..,..

See notes to basic fi¡ancial statements.

g 37,250,963 $ 615,885 $ 31,866,848

72,874,029 $

3,459,121.

4,21.9,80^I

242,600
7,285,902

573,313 $

577,4M

"18,445

83,297

13,387,342

4,036,565
4,279,807

267,045
-1,369,199

9,207,424

3,606,605

747,755

42,975
(6t8,24n

(427,61n

3,^178,988

368,000

(2,756,416)

(2,388,416)

790,572

30,460,39't

679,786

(105,873)

(t"t4,622)

(774,622)

(220,495)

355,000

355,000

1.34,505

481,,380

9,886,610

3,500,732

747,755

42,875
(732,869)

(542,23e)

2,958,493

723,000
(2,756,41.6)

(2,033,476)

925,077

30,941,,771,
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE F]SCAL YEAR ENDED TUNE 30, 2O1O

Business-Tvpe Activities - Ente¡prise Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from custome¡s and users...... .,..
Payments to vendors,
Payments to employees..

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers in
Transfe¡s out .. ,. ., ...

NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES..

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the issuance of bonds and notes....
lntergovernmen tal revenues....
Acquisition and construcLion of capital assets ....,......,, ...
Principal paymenLs on bonds and notes......
Interest expense.

NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIV]TIES..

CASH FLOWS FROM
Invesûnent income

II\IVESTING ACTryITIES

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS.

CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
(lncludes $2,647,060 and $11,118 reported as reshicted in the water and sewer
and golf course enterprise funds, respectively). .... ........

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
(lncìudes $2,629,9M and $11,118 reported as restricted in the wate¡ and sewer
and golf course enterprise funds, respectively) ,. .........

RECONCILIATTON OF OPERATING TNCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss).... .. .. ,... $
Adiuslments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

cash from operating activities:
Deprecialion,.
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Utiliiy liens..
User charges , . . . . . .

Special assessments............

6,855,709 773,71.3 7,029,422

$ 7,"110,873 $ 276,944 g 7,327,757

3,606,605 $ (10s,873) $ 3,s00,732

Water and Nonmajor
Sewer Golf Total

5 573,313 S 13,419,372
(442,6s6) (6,s70,128\

(729,639) (t,740,189)

5 72,U5,999
(6,727,472)

(1,610,ss0)

5,707,977 s,108,995

723,000

(2,7s6,476)

(2,033,476)

7,977,385

63,315

(7,7s7,772)

(2,433,301.)

(66e,746)

(2,820,1.1.9)

368,000
(2,756,476)

(2,388,476)

"r,977,385

63,375
(1.,757,772)

(2,237,370)

(552,8e0)

(2,s07,332)

355,000

(195,931)

(116,8s6)

(372,78n

42,875 42,875

255,104 43,231 298,335

Wanants payable....
Accrued payroll.
Net OPEB obligation.....

"1,285,902

(e,770\
(ss,682)

752,422

7"1,679
7 7qq

767,479

83,297 7,369,799

- (64,770)

- (ss,682)
- 152,422

(e74) (e74)

8,420 20,039

- 7,755

16,748 777,627

- 2,647Accrued compensated absences... 2,642

Total adjustrnents 7,501,372

NETCASHFROMOPERATINGACITVITIES...,, ...........,...... $ 5,707,977 $

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Intergovernmental debt subsidies (MWPAT) $

706,897 7,608,263

1,078 $ 5,108,995

84,U0

See notes to basic financial statements
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2010

Pension
Trust Fund

(As of "t2/ 37 / 0e)

Private
Purpose

Trust Funds
Agency
FundsASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents.............. ............,.,..... $
Investments..
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Departmental and other....

Total assets...

LIABILITIES

707,1.58 $

67,292,5M

2,667,760

368,2M $ 2,385,599

72,580

70,667,462 368,2M

Warrants payable........
Accrued payroll.........
Liabilities due depositors.................

Total liabilities........,.... 2,458,179

2,458,779

61,965
27,308

2,368,906

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes.,...,,..... $ T0,667,462 $

See notes to basic financial statements.

368,244 $-
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2070

ADDTTIONS
Contributions:

Employer. $
Employee..

Total contributions.

Net investment income:
Net appreciation/ (depreciation) in fair value of investments. . . . . ., .

Interest.

Total investment income (loss)...

Less investment expense

Net investment income (loss),.

Intergovernmental..

Transfers from other systems.

TOTAL ADDITIONS,......

DEDUCTIONS
Administration......
Retirement benefits and refunds
Transfers to other systems.,
Other..

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS.....

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS..

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR,

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR. $

See notes to basic financial statements.

Pension
Trust Fund

(As of "t2/31/0e)

5,418,757
2,443,828

Private
Purpose

Trust Funds

7,861,,979

8,170,664

2,949,761, 2,442

71,120,425

(242,377)

-1.0,878,708

2,M2

2,M2

358,486

41,5,886

19,51,4,459 2,442

186,124

8,362,37-l

677,269

6,500

9,225,764 6,500

1,0,288,695

60,378,767

(4,058)

372,302

70,667,462 $ 368,2M
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A, Gmerøl

The basic financial statements have been prepared ir accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant
accounting policies are described herein.

B. Reporting Entity

The Town of Natick, Massachusetts (Town) is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected Board of
Selectmen.

For financial reporting purposes, the basic financial statements include all funds, organizations, agencies, boards,
commissions and institutions that are not legally separate from the Town.

The Town has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable as well as
other organizations for which the nature andf or significance of their relationship with the Town are such that
exclusion would cause the Town's basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

Blended Component Unit

The Town has included the Natick Contributory Retirement System (System) as a component unit (blended) in
the reporting entity because of the significance of its operational and financial relationship with the Town.
Blended component units are entities that are legally separate from the Town, but are so related that they are, in
substance, the same as the Town or entities providing services entirely or almost entirely for the benefit of the
Town.

The System was established to provide retirement benefits to Town employees, the Natick Housing Authority
employees, and their beneficiaries. The System is governed by a five-member board comprised of the Town
Comptroller (ex-officio), two members elected by the System's participants, one member appointed by the
Town's Board of Selectmen and one member appointed by the System's four other Board members. The System
is presented using the accrual basis of accounting and is reported as a pension trust fund in the fiduciary funds
financial statements.

The System does not issue a separate audited financial statement. The System issues a publicly available
unaudited financial report in accordance with guidelines established by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts'
(Commonwealth) Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC). That report may be
obtained by contacting the System located at 13 East Cent¡al Street, Natick, Massachusetts 01760.

Discretel)¡ Presented Component Unit

Discretely presented component units are entities that are legally separate from the Town, but are financially
accountable to the Town, or whose relationships with the Town are such that exclusion would cause the Town's
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Town has included the Morse Institute in Natick
(Institute) as a discretely presented component unit because it is fiscally dependent on the Town and because the
nature and significance of its relationship with the Town is such that exclusion would cause the Town's financial
statements to be misleading.

The Institute provides support to enhance the operations of the Town's public library and is exempt from federal
and state income taxes as it is established under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Town of Nøtick, Møssøchusetts 27 B ø si c F inønci øl S tatement s



Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

The Institute issues separately audited cash basis financial statements, which is a comprehensive basis of
accounting other than GAAP, The main difference is that the effect on earnings from accounts and pledges
receivable as well as accounts payable and donated services are not recognized, Complete financial statements of
the Institute, audited by other auditors, can be obtained directþ from the Instrtute by contacting the Director at 14
East Central Street, Natick, Massachusefts 01760.

Toint Venture

A joint venture is an organizat'ton (resulting from a contractual arrangement) that is owned, operated or governed
by two or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control in which the participants
retain an ongoing financial interest or ongoing financial responsibility. |oint control means that no single
participant has the ability to unilaterally control the financial or operating policies of the joint venture.

The Town participates in one joint venture with other municipalities to pool resources and share the costs, risks
and rewards of providing goods and services to venture participants directly, or for the benefit of the general
public or specified recipients.

South Middlesex Regional VocationøI Technical High School District

The Town is indirectly liable for the South Middlesex Regional Vocational Technical High School District
(District) debt and other expenditures and is assessed annually for its share of operating and capital costs. The
Town's fiscal year 20L0 assessment total approximately $1,283,000. Separate audited financial statements may be
obtained by contacting the District at750 Winter Street, Framingham, Massachus etts 07702.

C. G o a ernmmt-Wide ønil F un d Fin øn ciøl S t atement s

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (statement of net assets and the statement activities) report
information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its discretely presented component
units. Goaernmental øctiuities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately frombusiness-type actiaitles, which are primarily supported by user fees. Likewise, the
primary government is reported separately from legally separate discretely presented component unit for which
the primary government is financially accountable.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and displayed in a single column.

Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

D. Meøsurement Focus, Bøsis of Accounting ønd Bøsis of presentøtion

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide and enterprise funds financial statements apply all applicable Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued on or prior to November 30,7989, unless those pronouncements
conflict with or cont¡adict GASB pronouncements.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method/ revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are recognized as revenues in the fiscal
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include the following:

privileges provided by a given function or segment.

or segment.

segment.

Taxes and other items not identifiable as plogram revenues are reported as general revenues.

Except for charges between the general fund and enterprise funds, the effect of interfund activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements, Elimination of these charges would distort the direct
costs and program revenues reported for the functions affected.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and available means collectrble within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences, claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be
liquidated with current expendable available resources.

Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60-days after
the end of the fiscal year. Investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and tax revenues become
measurable and available when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other
grant requirements are met.

The following major governmental funds are reported:

The general fund is the primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial resources, except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.

The high school project fund is a capital project fund used to account for the design and construction of a new high
school.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended june 30, 2010

The nonmajor governmental funds consist of other special revenue, capital projects and permanent funds that are
aggregated and presented in the nonmajor goaernmental funds column on the governmental funds financial
statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types:

The speciøl reuenue fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than capital projects
funds or permanent funds) that are restricted by law or administrative action to expenditures for specified
purPoses.

The capital projects fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities (other than those financed by enterprise funds).

The permnnent fund is used to account for financial resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support governmental programs.

Proprietary funds financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liabilities are incurred,

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
the proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The water ønd sewer enterprise fund is reported as a major fund and is used to account for the water and sewer
activities.

The golf course enterprise fund is reported as a nonmajor fund and is used to account for the Sassamon Trace golf
course activities.

Fiduciary funds financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacìty for
others that carurot be used to support the government's programs.

The following fiduciary fund types are reported:

The pension trust fund is used to account for the activities of the System, which accumulates resources to provide
pension benefits to eligible retirees and their beneficiaries,

The pnaøte-purpose trust fund is used to account for trust arrangements, other than those properly reported in the
permanent fund, under which principal and investment income exclusively benefits individuals, private
or ganizations, or other governments.

The agency furzd is used to account for assets held in a custodial capacity. Agency funds do not present the results
of operations or have a measurement focus.

E. Deposits ønd Inoestments

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Investments are carried at fair value. Fair value is based on quotations from a national securities and exchange
except for pooled funds, alternative investments and real estate, for which fair value is determined as follows:

Pooled Funds

The fair value of shares in managed investment pools is based on unit value reported by the funds.

Alternative Investments

Alternative investments are recorded at fair value as determined in good faith by the general partners of the
venture capital firms after consideration of pertinent information, including current financial position and
operating results, price-earnings multiples and available market prices of similar companies' securities, the nature
of securities, marketability, restrictions on disposition and other appropriation and do not necessarily represent
amounts which might ultimately be realized, since such amounts depend on future circumstances and cannot
reasonably be determined untrl individual securities are liquidated.

Real Estate

The fair value of real estate funds is based on independent third-party appraisals. The investment managers of
the funds are responsible for the reported value of those investments. However, the structure, risk profile, return
potential and marketability of those investments differ from traditional equity and fixed income investments.
Determination of the value of these investments involves subjective judgment because the actual market value
can be determined only by negotiation between the parties to a sales transaction. As a result, the estimated values
may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready market for the real estate existed,
and the differences could be material.

F. Accounts Receiaøble

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the government-wide financial statements
and fund financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis of
accounting, respectively.

Real Estate Taxes, Personal Property Taxes and Tax Liens

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 1't of every year.
Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessor's for 100% of the estimated fair market value, Taxes are
due on August 1't, November 1't, February 1st and May 1't and are subject to penalties and interest if they are not
paid by the respective due date.

Real estate tax liens are processed six months after the close of the valuation year on delinquent properties and
are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year they are processed.

Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered in the Town and are recorded as

receivables in the fiscal year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles
registered and the fair values of those vehicles to the Town. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle
multiplied by $25 per $1,000 of value.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20L0

User Charges (Water and Sewer)

IJser fees are levied monthly based on individual meter readings and are subject to penalties and interest if they
are not paid by the respective due date. Water and sewer liens are processed annually in December and are
included as a lien on the property owner's tax bill. Water and sewer charges and liens are recorded as receivables
in the fiscal year of the levy.

Special Assessments

Special assessments consist of sewer, sidewalk, stree! RUST and Title V betterments and are recorded as

receivables in the fiscal year accrued.

Departmental and Other

Departmental and other receivables primarily consist primarily of ambulance, police details and trash ("Pay as

you Throw" (PAYT) program) and are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year accrued.

Intergovernmental

Various state and federal operating and capital grants are appìied for and received annually. For non-
expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met. For expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized when the qualifying expenditures are
incurred and all other grant requirements are met.

G. Allowønce for Uncollectible Amounts

The allowance for uncollectible amounts is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis for
the following accounts receivable:

The following types of accounts receivable are secured via the lien process and are considered 100% collectible.
Accordingly, an allowance for uncollectible amounts is not reported.

Intergovernmental receivables are considered 100 % collectible.

H, Inaentories

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Inventories of the governmental activities, governmental funds and water and sewer enterprise fund are recorded
as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories are not material in total to the respective financial
statements and therefore are not reported.

Inventories of the golf course enterprise fund are stated at weighted average cost.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended june 30, 2010

L Restricted Assets

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Assets are reported as restricted when limitafions on their use change the nature of the availability of the asset.
Such constraints are either externally imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, or laws of other governments,
or are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

I. Cøpitøl Assets

Government-Wide and Proprietar)¡ Fund Financial Statements

Capital assets, which consist of land, construction in progress, land improvements, buildings, equipment,
vehicles, library books and infrastructure (e.g., roads, water mains, sewer mains, and similar items), are reported
in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column of the government-wide financial statements.

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or at estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.
Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

All purchases and construction costs in excess of $5,000 are capitalized at the date of acquisition or construction,
respectively, with expected useful lives of greater than one year.

Capital assets (excluding land and construction in progress) are depreciated on a straight-line basis. The
estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

Capital Asset Type

Estimated
Useful

Life
(in years)

Land improvements. 20-30
Buildings, 20-40
Equipment. .. 5-10
Vehicles. 5-15
Library books... 10
Infrastructure....., 10-50

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized and are treated as expenses when incurred. Improvements are capitalized.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Capital asset costs are recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund in the fiscal year of the purchase.

K. lnterfund Receioøbles ønd Pøyøbles

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within funds that may result in amounts
owed between funds.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20L0

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the
governmental activities in the statement of net assets, Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-fpe activities are reported in the statement of net assets as "internal
balances".

Fund Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund
statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as "Due from other funds"
or "Due to other funds" on the balance sheet.

L. InterfundTrønsfers

During the course of its operations, resources are permanently reallocated between and within funds.

G overnment-Wide Financial Statements

Transfers between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the governmental activities i¡ the
statement of net assets. A.y residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-
type activities are reported in the statement of activities as "Transfers, net".

Fund Financial Statements

Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as
transfers in and transfers out.

M, DeferredReaenue

Deferred revenue at the fund financial statement level represents billed receivables that do not meet the available
criterion in accordance with the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting, Deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the conversion to the government-wide financial
statements (full accrual).

N. Net Assets ønilFundEquity

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Assets)

Net assets are reported as restricted when amounts are restricted by outside parties for a specific future use.

Net assets have been "restricted" for the following:

"Debt service" represents amounts accumulated from the Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) for
future payment of long-term debt service costs associated with school construction. This amount will be
amofttzed over the next 11 fiscal years,

"Permanent funds - expendable" represents amounts held in trust for which the expenditures are restricted by
various trust agreements.

"Permanent funds - nonexpendable" represents amounts held in trust for which only investment earnings may
be expended.

"Other specific purposes" represents restrictions placed on assets from outside parties.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Fund Financial Statements (Fund Balances)

Fund balances are reserved for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by
outside parties for a specific future use. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that
are subject to change.

Fund balances have been "reseryed for" the following:

"Encumbrances and continuing appropriations" represents amounts obligated under purchase orders, contracts
and other commitments for expenditures that are being carried over to the ensuing fiscal year.

"Debt service" represents amounts accumulated from the Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) for
future payment of long-term debt service costs associated with school construction. This amount will be
amortized over the next 11. fiscal years.

"Perpefual permanent funds" represents amounts held in trust for which only investment earnings may be
expended.

"Other specific purposes" represents restrictions placed on assets from outside parties.

Fund balances have been "designated for" the following:

"Stabllizatton" represents amounts accumulated for general andf or capital purposes, which is subject to Town
meeting approval.

"Subsequent year's expenditures" represents amounts appropriated to fund the fiscal year 2011budget.

O. Long-termDebt

Government-Wide and Proprietar)¡ Fund Financial Statements

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements of net assets.
Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources when the debt is
issued. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond
premiums are reported as other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general
government expenditures.

P. Inaestment Income

Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from major and nonmajor governmental funds is
legally assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts General Law (MGL).

Investment income derived from the water and sewer enterprise fund is retained in the fund. Investment income
derived from the golf course enterprise fund is voluntarily assigned to the general fund.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

A. Compensateil Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreements,
state laws and executive policies.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expensed as incurred.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources/ are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities upon employee retirements and resignations.

R. Post Retiretnent Benefits

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

In addition to providing pension benefits and as more fully described in Note 13, the Town provides health and
life insurance coverage for current and future retirees and their spouses.

S. Use of Estimates

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformify with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.

T. Totøl Cohtmn

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial
information.

Fund Financial Statements

The total column presented on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data
in this column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetøry lnformøtion

Municipal Law requires the adoption of a balanced budget that is approved by Town Meeting vote. The Finance
Committee presents an annual budget to Town Meeting, which includes estimates of revenues and other
financing sources and recommendations of expenditures and other financing uses. Town Meeting, which has full
authority to amend andf or reject the budget or any line item, adopts the expenditure budget by majority vote.
Increases or transfers between departments subsequent to the approval of the annual budget require Special
Town Meeting approval.
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The majority of appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each fiscal year. Others are
continuing appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a prior
fiscal year be carried forward and made available for spending in the current fiscal year.

Generally, expenditures may not exceed the level of spending (salaries, expenses and capital) authorized for an
appropriation account. Howevet, the Town is statutorily required to pay debt service, regardless of whether such
amounts are appropriated,

An annual budget is adopted for the general fund in conformity with the guidelines described above. The
original fiscal year 2010 approved budget for the general fund authorized approximately 999,802,567 tn
appropriations and other amounts to be raised. During fiscal year 2010, supplemental appropriations totaling
approximately fiI,948,820 were authorized.

The Comptroller's office has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is maintained. Budgetary control
is exercised through the accounting system.

B. FunilDeficits

At June 30,2070, the following fund deficits exist:

Fund Amount Funding Source

Goaernmentql

High school project (major fund).
Glen street drainage improvements.......
Brown school project.
Parking garage.

W øt er/S ew er Ent erpri s e

Phase 5 relining..
Water phase 3 / 4unior¡ speen, pond.....

504,789 Issuance of debt
1,62,304 Issuance of debt

2,927,006

593,777

158,000

28,432

Issuance of debt
Issuance of debt
Issuance of debt
Issuance of debt

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Tozan (excluding the Pension Tntst Fund ønd Institute)

The municipal finance laws of the Commonwealth authorize the Town to invest temporarily idle cash in bank
term deposits and certificates of deposits, and treasury and agency obligations of the United States government,
with maturities of one year or less; U.S. treasury or agency repurchase agreements with maturities of not more
than 90 days; money market accounts; and the state treasurer's investment pool - the Massachusetts Municipal
Depository Trust (MMDT).

The MMDT meets the criteria of an external investment pool and operates in accordance with applicable state
laws and regulations. The Treasurer of the Commonwealth serves as Trustee. The reported value of the pool is
the same as the fair value of pool shares.

A cash and investment pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds with unrestricted cash and
investments. The deposits and investments of private purpose trust funds and the pension trust fund are held
separately from other Town funds.
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Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Town's deposits may not be
recovered. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of deposits, As of june 30,20'lO, $10,436,257
of the Town's bank balance of $46,742,962was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments Summary

The Town's investments at June 30,2010 are presented below. All investments are presented by investment type,
with debt securities presented by maturity.

Investment Type

Investment
Maturities

(In Yrs)
Fair Less

Value Than 1

Debt Securities:
External investment pools.. fi 21.2,667 fi 21.2,667

Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The Town does not have a policy for interest rate risk of debt securities.

Investments - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Town will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
Party. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments. As of june 30, 2010 the Town's
investments were not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for debt securities is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not fulfill its
obligations. The Town does not have a policy for credit risk of debt securities. As of June 90,2010, the credit
quality ratings of the Town's debt securities are as follows:

Quality
Ratings *

Fair
Investment Type Value Unrated

External inveshnent pools........... $ 212,667 g 21.2,667

* Per the rating scale of Standard and Poor's (a national credit rating organization)

P ension Trust Fund (The Sy stem)

The System has expanded investment powers, including the ability to invest in equity securities, corporate bonds
and other specified investments.
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Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the System's deposits may not be
recovered. As of December 31, 2009, the System was not exposed to custodial credit risk,

Investments Summary

The System's investments at December 31, 2009 are presented below. AII investments are presented by
investment type, with debt securities presented by maturity.

Investment Type
Fair

Value

Investment
Maturities
(in Years)

Less

Than 1

Debt Securities:
Mutual bond funds. 13,939,726 $ 1,3,939,726

Other Investments:
Equity mutual funds 45,435,M0

4,205,285

3,712,093

Real estate investments
Alternative investments........

Total other investments....... 53,352,818

Total investments........,........ $ 67,292,544

Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The System's policy regarding interest rate risk is that the duration of the fixed
income portfolio shall be maintained within a range of + ¡ - 1,5% of the duration of the fixed income benchmark
designated in the "Manager Specific Guidelines".

Investments - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the System will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The System does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments. As of December 37,2009, the
System's investments were not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for debt securities is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not fufill its
obligations. The System's policy regarding credit risk is that the average quality of all bond holding should be
maintainedatAorbetterunlessotherwisestatedinthe"ManagerspecificGuidelines". AsofDecember3L,2009,
the credit quality ratings of the System's debt securities are as follows:
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Mutual bond funds, 73,939,726

* Per the rating scale of Standard and Poor's (a national credit rating organization)

The Institute (Discretely Presented Component llnit)

Investments Summar)¡

The Instifute's investments at June 30,2010 are presented below. All investments are presented by investment
type, with debt securities presented by maturity.

lnvestment Type
Fair

Value

fi 1.3,939,726 $

Quality
Ratings*

Unrated

Fair
ValueInvestment Type

Corporatebonds... ............. $
Common and preferred stock.........

Total investments... ........,... $

708,470

893,1,25

1.,60'1.,535

NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

At June 30, 2070, receivables for the individual major governmental funds and nonmajor governmental and
fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible amounts, are as follows:

Gross
Amount

Allowance
for

Uncollectibles
Net

Amount
Receivables:

Real estate and personal property taxes....,.... $
Real estate tax deferrals
Tax, trash and utility liens.
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes
Special assessments.

Departmental and other

't4,428,'J.53g(323,967)$1.4,1.04,186

'1,,769,739

269,gg1
1,,695,547

371,,992

262,495

3,273,687
6,784,819

$ (31,101) $

(100,841)

(1,92,025)

1,,739,637

269,881
"1,695,547

27"1,151

262,495
3,081.,656

6,784,819
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At June 30, 201.0, receivables for the water and sewer enterprise fund consist of the following:

Gross
Amount

fi t67,9t9 $
3,437,603
2,"152,56-l

57,052

Allowance
for

Uncollectibles
Net

Amount
Receivables:

Utility liens....
User charges.........
Special assessments
Intergovernmental..

"167,979

3,437,603

2,'152,561

57,052

Governmental funds report deferred rel)enue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to
be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. The following identifies the various components of
deferredreaenue reported in the governmental funds:

$ 5,8L5,135 $

General
Fund

Nonrnajor
Governmental

Funds

$ 5,815,135

Total
Receivable type:

Real estate and personal property taxes.. $
Real estate tax deferrals
Tax and utility liens.
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes..
Special assessments
Departmental and other..
Intergovernmental (state school construction). . . .

Intergovernmental (other state and federal)......

L,464,729 $
269,887

1,,695,547

277,151
91,965

306,645
5,657,595

723,325

170,630

fi '1.,464,1.29

269,881

7,695,547
27"1,'1,57

262,495

306,645
5,657,595

1,23,325

Total,. g 9,874,128 $ 770,630 g 10,0M,768

The Commonwealth has approved school construction assistance to the Town, The assistance program, which is
administered by the Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA), provides resources for future debt service
of general obligation school bonds outstanding. During fiscal year 201.0, approximately 9917,000 of such
assistance was received. Approximately $9,043,000 will be received in future fiscal years. Of this amount,
approximately $3,391,000 represents reimbursement of long-term interest costs, and approximately $5,652,000
represents reimbursement of approved construction costs. Accordingly, a95,651,595 intergovernmental
receivable and corresponding deferred revenue have been reported in the governmental funds financial
statements. The deferred revenue has been recognized as revenue in the conversion to the government-wide
financial statements.
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NOTES-CAPITALASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201.0, was as follows:

Beginning
Balance

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land...
Construction in progress...

Increases Decreases

Ending
Balance

$ "10,124,124 g

1,,728,5s7

71,852,681

2,493,567

95,763,00-l

4,227,036

6,544,957

2,-t62,674

37,722,029

(556,835)

(s56,835)

(247,838)

(74"t,881)

-10,124,1.24

6,767,0775,595,355

Total capital assets not being depreciated......

CapitalêËe ts þq!¡ g deprecia ted:

Land improvements......
Buildings....,
Machinery and equipment... ... ......
Vehicles...

Library books......
Infrastrucfure

Total capital assets being depreciated....., ... ..

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land improvements......
Buildings.....

Machinery and equipment...............
Vehicles...

Library books......
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation...

Total capital assets being depreciated, net... ..........

5,595,355 1.6,891.,207

16,180

2,045,855

339,1.96

67,665

771,553

4t0,964

2,509,74-l

97,808,856

4,3-t8,394

5,870,641

2,334,227

38,-t32,993

L48,913,'1.58

(1,408,228)

(36,964,056)

(2,s69,773)

(3,799,861)

(1.,282,484)

(24,408,386)

(69,832,788)

79,080,370

3,051,,413

(86,892)

(2,0ee;t25)

(327,809)

(446,e87)

(185,099)

(8s8,144)

(4,004,0s6)

(e52,643)

(e89,779)

246,323

720,927

967,250

150,974,852

(1,4e5,'t20)

(39,063,181)

(2,651,259)

(2,925,e2t)

(1,467,583)

(25,266,530)

(72,869,5e4)

Total governmental activities capital assets, net... ..... $ 90,933,0b1 $ 4,642,212

(22,46e) 78,105,258

g (579,304) g 94,ee6,459
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Beginning

Balance

379,255

3,707,055

4,086,310

189,023

680,487

1,049,672

49,096,224

Ending
Balance

Business-Type Activity- Watey'Sewer Enterprise:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land...........
Construction in progress...

Total capital assets not being depreciated.....,

Capital assets beins deoreciated:

Land improvements........
Machinery and equipment.......,.......
Vehicles..,....
Infrastructure. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total capital assets being depreciated..

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements........
Machinery and equipment...............
Vehicles......
Infrastructure. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total accumulated depreciation...................

Total capital assets being depreciated, net...............

Total water/sewer enterprise capital assets, net.......

Increases Decreases

$$
1.,260,574 (t,"127,"t81)

7,260,574

379,255

3,840,M8

284,963
't,339,476

(-t ,1.27,1.87)

(1e5,800)

4,279,703

189,023

680,487

1,138,835

50,435,640

5'1.,075,406 1.,624,379 (195,800) 52,443,985

Q3,07e) (e,451) (42,530)

(3e5,s5e) (48,508) - (444,06n
(689,6e1) (87,638) 195,800 (587,52e)

(21,172,88n (1,140,305)

(22,29"t,2t6) (1,285,e02) 19s,800 (23,387,3"18)

28,724,790 338,477 - 29,062,667

$__32,810,500_ $_1,5ee,051_ $ __A,121,151)_ fi _33,252,370._
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Beginning

Balance Increases Decreases

Ending

Balance

Business-Type Activity- Golf Course Enterprise:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land........... $

Capital assets being depreciated:

Land improvements......,.
Buildings.....
Machinery and equipment...,.........,.

Total capital assets being depreciated...........

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvemenbs...,,...
Buildings,....
Machinery and equipment..,............

Total accumulated depreciation.............,.,..,

Total capital assets being depreciated, net...........,..,

Total golf course enterprise capital assets, net.......... $

(76e,e27) (83,2en

2,125,1.8e (83,29n

2,79e,1.88 $ (83,29n $

673,999 $ -$ 673,999

2,647,7t9

120,513

1.27,478

2,647,779
'1.20,51.3

127,478

2,895,71.0 2,895,'l'10

(637,924)

(4,s7e)

(127,478)

(80,284)

(3,013)

(778,208)

(7,532)

(127,478)

(853,218)

2,041,892

-$ 2,715,897

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General government ........ $
Public safety.

Education.
Public works.
Health and human services..

Culture and recreation.....
Library..

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities. . . . . . .

Business-Type Activities:
Water and sewer.
Golf...

739,949

580,649

1,,628,840

1,,275,790

1,,600

792,729
-1,85,099

4,004,056

7,285,902

83,297

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities....... $ 1.,369,199
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NOTE 6 - OPERATING LEASES

Lessee

The Town is committed under several operating leases for office equipment, a parking lot and a modular building
used as a clubhouse and administrative building at the golf course. During fiscal year 2010, the Town paid
approximately $140,000 related to these leases, which are accounted for in the general fund and golf course
enterprise fund. Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

G o p ernment øl Actio iti e s

Fiscal Year Payment

201,1.... $ 50,000

Bu s in e s s -Ty p e A ctio iti e s

Fiscal Year Payment

$ 8s,sgg
76,450
62,997

64,997
Lessot

The Town leases buildings governed by separate agreements. During fiscal year 2010, the Town received
approximately fi279,000 related to these leases. Future minimum lease payments to be received are as follows:

Fiscal Year Payment

2011,,..

201,2....

2013...
2014..

2072
177,016

9,000

NOTE 7 - INTERzuND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

Receivables and payables between funds atJune30,201,0, are summarized as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

Water and Sewer Fund....... General Fund.... g 419,M7 (1)

(1) Represents over-allocations of retirement benefits in previous fiscal years.
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lnterfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201.0, are summarized as follows:

Transfers In

Transfers Out:
General

Fund

General Fund. .,.,...... $ $
Nonmajor Governmental Funds. , . , .. 2-10,587

Water & Sewer Enterprise Fund... . 2,506,4'16

High fthool
Project

Maior Fund

30,000 $

Nonmajor Water & Sewer

Covemmental Enterprise
Funds Fund

Golf
Enterprise

Fund Total

355,ooo $ 528,6s3 (1)

- 328,s81 (2)

- 

2,756,4t6 (3)

743,653 $ -$
118,000

250,000

fi _22]þ,ew_ $ 30,000 $ 143,6s3 $ 368,000 $ 3s5,000 $3,613,650

(1) Represents the paydown of BANs in the high school project major fund ($30,000) and in various capital
project funds ($143,653). Also represents funding of debt service ($355,000) for the Sassamon Trace GoIf Course.

(2) Represents budgeted transfers from parking meters ($80,000); Title V ($7,684) and MSBA (fi122,897). Also
rePresents a transfer from the receipts reserved fund ($118,000) to the water/sewer enterprise fund.

(3) Represents budgeted transfer of indirect costs ($2,506,416). Also represents a transfer from the operating fund
of the water & sewer enterprise fund ($250,000) to a water & sewer capital improvements fund.

NOTE 8 - SHORT-TERM FINANCING

Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following:

o Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue anticipation notes
(RAN) or tax anticipation notes (TAN).

r Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing
through issuance of bond anticipation notes (BAN) or grant anticipation notes (GAN).

Short-term loans are general obligations and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. Interest
expenditures and expenses for short-term borrowings are accounted for in the general fund and enterprise funds,
respectively.
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Details related to the short-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, is as follows:

Notes Payøble - Goaernmentøl Funds

Type Description
Balance at

fune 30, 2009

$ 8s0,000

410,000

375,000

350,000

350,000

280,000
^175,000

130,000

Inc¡eases

$ -$

2,250,000

1.000,000

3,250,000

Decreases

Balance at

June 30, 2010

2,250,000

1,000,000

3,250,000

Origination Ma h.rrity Interest
Date Date Rate

BAN Kennedyschoolroofrepair.. . .,

BAN Police station/town hall HVAC... .

BAN Memorial school DDC system ,....
BAN Memo¡ial school kitchen.... . .......
BAN Keruredyschool kitchen.... . .....
BAN High school feasibility........ , ......
BAN Equipment- trash packer.....,,...
BAN Equipment- sidewalk tractor........
BAN High school feasibility ................
BAN Communit¡z center plans

Total. ...

Notes Pøyøble - Enterprise Funds

Type Description
Origination Maturity

Date Date

6/30/oe
6/30/0e
6/30/ oe

6/30/0e
6/30/oe
6/30/ 09

6/30/0e
6/30/0e
6/30/-10
6/30/70

6/30/10 1.75%

6/30/10 775%
6/30/1.0 7,75.Á

6/30/1.0 1.757.
6/30/"t0 't.75ï"
6/30/1.0 1.7sV,

6/30/'t0 1.757.
6/30/10 175"/"
6/7s/1-1 1..s0.Á

6/7s/-r7 1 s0%

Interest
Rate

(8s0.000) $

(410,000)
(37s,000)

(35Oooo)

(3s0,000)

(280,000)

(175,000)
(130,000)

2,920,000 5 $ (¿e20,000) $

Balance at

June 30, 2009 Increases

Balance at
Decreases June 30, 2010

BAN Water mai¡ relining...... 6/30/09 6/30/70 7.T5./. 600,000 $ (600,000) $

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Chapter 44, Section 10, of the MGL authorizes indebtedness up to a limit of 5% of the equalized valuation. Debt
issued in accordance with this section of the law is designated as being "inside the debt limit". However, debt
may be authorized in excess of that limit for specific purposes. Such debt, when issued, is designated as being
"outside the debt limit".

In prior fiscal years, certain general obligation bonds were defeased by placing the proceeds of bonds in an
irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. Accordingly, the trust
account's assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the basic financial statements. At ]une
30,2070, $5,000,000 of bonds outstanding from this advance refunding is considered defeased,

Details related to the outstanding indebtedness at June 30,2070, and the debt service requirements are as follows:
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Bonds øndNotes Pøyøble - Gooernmentøl Eunds

Project
Interest

Rate

Outstanding
at June 30,

2009 Redeemed

Outstanding
at June 30,

2U.t0

Morse Institute Library.........
Landfill Capping,...........
LandfilìCapping*........ . .. .. ....... . ............
Oil Tank Removal / Remediation*
Morse Institute Library*
Municipal Complex (Town Hall / Safety)*.. .. ..

Landfill Capping..
Morse Institute Library.....,
Municipal Complex (Town Hall / Safety)..
Municipal Complex (Town Hall / Safety)
Landfill Capping (Net of Surplus to G.C.).

Septic Title V (MWPAT) T5-97-7026

Storm Water (MWPAT). .. ...... .

Land Acquisition*. ............
Fuel Storage (Residential ).
Fuel Storage (Municipal )* .. .. .. . . , . ..

Septic Title V (MWPAT) T5-97-1,026-1,...

Capital Improvements (FY2005)..

Capital Equipment (FY2005).. ..

Capital Equipment (FY2006) ATM 2005.......
Capital Equipment (FY2006) FTM 2005.......
Capital Equipment (FY2007) ATM 2006.. ..
Capital Equipment (FY2007) ATM 2006.,..
Lilia School*. ...

Brown School*. ... .

Lilja School. ,. ...
Lilja School.....
Lilja fthoo1.....
Bennet-Hemenway School......,..
Wilson Middle School.. ,.

Wilson Middle School. ........
Kennedy Middle School.

School Capital Improvements (FY2005).

M.P.L. of 20O8-Building remodeling. . . ..

M,P.L. of 2008-Surface drain.
M.P.L. of 2008-Departmental Equipment-Fire.. .

M.P.L of 2008-Departmental Equipment...
M.P.L. of 2008-Departmental Equipment...
M.P.L. of 2008-Departmental Equipment.......... .

M.P.L. of 2008-Departmental Equipment
M.P.L. of 2008-Departmental Equipment.
M.P,L. of 2008-Departmental Equipment...
Septic Title V (MWPAT) T5-97-1026-8...
M P L of 20l0-Departmental Equipment,.,..
M.P.L. of 201O-Departmental Equipment......
M.P.L. of 201O-Building Rernodeling - School
M P.L of 2010-Building Remodeling - School ............
M.P.L. of 2O10-Building Remodeling - Municipal . . .. .

Total governmental funds.

* Represents amounts that were refunded during a

5.26%

5.05%

5.30%

5.29%

5.30y"

5.29%

4.73%

4.67%

4.67%

4 87%

4.93%

0.00%

0 00%

3 72y,

3.12%

3."t2%

0.007"

3.97%

4 50%

3 90'/"

3.90%

3 88y"

3 88%

5 30%

5 33v.

4.707.

4.70%

4.94y"

5.1.5%

474%
4.74y"

3.30%

3.98%

3.38-5.00%

3 38-5 00%

3.38-5 00%

3.38-s.00%

3.38-5.00%

3.38-5.0070

3.38-5.00%

3.38-5.00%

3.38-5.00 %

0.00%

2.00-2.75%

2.00-3.25%

2.00-3.25%

2.00-3.25%

2.00-3.25%

905,000 $
35,000

75,745

260,254

1,285,188

285,398

1,250,000

1,000,000

4,000,000

4,500,000
"r,227,763

84,344
-12t,585

477,600

252,000

50,400

77,674

14,000

170,000

70,000

52,000

75,000

9,000

774,705

379,3'10

225,000

3,524,000

165,000

7,920,000

7,375,000

975,000

500,000

110,000

845,000

950,000

355,000

435,000

35,000

30,000

30,000

280,000

770,000

150,000

(1s5,000)

(3s,000)

(1s,14s)

(45,254)

(225,188)

(ss,398)

(125,000)

(125,000)

(500,000)

(s00,000)

(-t14,069)

(7,684)

(29,1,49)

(89,900)

(54,250)

(10,850)

(5,727)

(14,000)

(170,000)

(35,000)

(26,000)

(27,000)

(3,ooo)

(re,705)
(89,310)

(25,000)

(396,000)

(1s,000)

(660,000)

(495,000)

(6s,000)

(100,000)

(110,000)

(9s,000)

(11s,000)

(45,000)

(e0,000)

(1s,000)

(10,000)

(10,000)

(70,000)

(20,000)

(7,s00)

$ 750,000

60,000

215,000

1,060.000

230,000

1,-125,000

875,000

3,500,000

4,000,000

7,773,694

76,660

92,436

327,700
-197,750

39,550

66,487

35,000

26,000

48,000

6,000

95,000

290,000

200,000

3,'-128,000

150,000

7,260,000

6,880,000

910,000

400,000

750,000

835,000

310,000

345,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

210,000

150,000

742,500

150,000

7-17,000

1,200,000

7,670,000

410,000

150,000

777,000

1,200,000

1,670,000

410,000

fi 40,779,306

prior fiscal year

$ 3,547,000 $ (4,81,9,529) $ 39,506,777
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Debt service requirements for prrncipal and interest for governmental bonds and notes payable in future fiscal
years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Interest Total

2011............. $

201.2....

2013..

201.4..

2075...

2016..

20't7...
2018..

2019...

2020..

2021....
2022..

2023...

2024..

2025..

2026..

2027.,

2028..

2029..

Principal

4,832,471,

4,736,399

4,641,727

4,491,,549

4,1,26,549

3,671,,411,

3,61,6,411,

2,921,,471,

1,820,411,

1,,685,411.

1,227,602

567,727

567,721

562,500

7,500

7,500

7,500

7,500

7,500

1,739,974 $

1,,533,534

1,,328,358

1,131,,682

939,263

752,622

578,367

479,826

291,367

205,869

133,944

74,622

50,081

24,975

6,572,445

6,269,922

5,g7o,o7g

5,623,23-l

5,065,812

4,424,033

4,1,94,778

3,341,,237

2,111,778

7,897,280
'1,,361,,546

642,343

617,802

587,475

7,500

7,500

7,500

7,500

7,500

Total,. S 39,506,777 $ 9,204,484 48,777,261
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended june 30, 2010

Bonds øndNotes Pøyøble - EnterpriseFund (Wøter ønd Seroer)

Project
Interest

Rate

Outstanding
at June 30,

2009 Issued

Outstanding
at June 30,

Redeemed 2010

Wate¡ Treatment Plant*.. .... .. .

Water Treatment Plant.. .. .. ... .

Sewer (Pleasant, Rockwood,etc.)............
Sewer (Pleasant, Eliot, Unioryetc.)........
Sewer ( Union, St)......
Water (Lakeshore Dr)..............
Water (Lakeshore Dr)..
Sewer (Boden Ln & Water, Lincolry etc.)........... ..........
Water Meters
Water Relining
Water Relining
Sewer (Lakeshore Rd)..
Sewer (Leach Ln).,.........
Water Elm Bank *Refunded ,.........
Water Meters..
Sewer I&l (MWRA)........
Sewer (Speen St, Park Ave.... . ... .. ....
Wate¡ Teatment (MWPAT) *Refunded. ..

Water Mains - Lining.
M.P.L. of 2008-Departmental Equipment. .. .

M.P.L. of 2OO8-Departmental Equipment......
M P.L. of 2010-Sewer.

M.P.L. of 2010-Departmental Equipment - Sewer....... ....
M.P.L. of 2010-Water Mains - Lining... ... .. . .

M.P.L. of 2010-Well......
M,P,L. of 2010-Water Departmental Equipment.. . . . . . .. .

Sewer (MWRA) .... ..

Total Water/Sewer enterprise fund

3 25-3.75%

4.73%

4.7"t%

4.92%

4.90%

4.94y"

51.4%

5.09%

4."197"

4.1.9%

4.19y,

4.7-t%

4.73y"

296%
3 30%

0.00%

4.03%

2.00%

3 38-5 00%

3.38-s.00%

3.38-5 00%

2.00-3.25%

2.00-3.'25'/"

2.00-3.25%

2.00-3 257"

2.00-3.25%

0 007,

$ 195,000

605,000
"121,000

390,000

30s,000

275,000

300,000

580,000

540,000

210,000

420,000

260,000

130,000

570,000

175,000

67,650

1,890,000

4,472,423

2,700,000

80,000

50,000

(30,000)

(62,000)

(12,000)

(40,000)

(30,000)

(25,000)

(25,000)

(90,000)

(180,000)

(70,000)

(r40,000)

(20,000)

(1 0,000)

(150.000)

(3s.000)

(67,650)

(105,000)

(275,720)

(300,000)

(10,000)

(20,000)

$ 16s,ooo

543,000

109,000

350,000

275,000

250,000

275,000

490,000

360,000

140,000

280,000

240,000

120,000

420,000

140,000

"r,785,000

4,256,703

2,400,000

70,000

30,000

300,000

250,000

600,000

250,000

500,000

77,385

5 '14,336,073

300,000

250,000

600,000

250,000

500,000

77,385

s 1,977,385 (7,637,370) g 14,676,088

* Represents amounts that were refunded during a prior fiscal year
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended |une 30, 2010

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for water and sewer enterprise fund bonds and notes payable
in future fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Interest TotalPrincipal

g 1.,766,717 $

1,,7"17,739

1,313,399

7,1,82,500

7,139,91,5

7,722,294
-1,,132,041,

1,,741,,797

942,409

777,"155

577,902

461,522

Ml,269
455,ggg

460,763

105,000

105,000

599,995

527,887

453,749

398,21,4

352,736

307,237

252,803

202,123

1,51,,477

11,5,1,57

82,817

58,363

34,634
'1,5,251

10,893

6,536

2,1,79

2,366,1,72

2,245,025

1,,767,"137

1,580,71,4

"1,492,651

7,423,525
-1,384,8M

7,343,91,0

993,885

892,372

594,71,9

519,885

475,903

477,140

471,656

177,536

1,07,1,79

Bonds øndNotes Pøyøble - Enterprise Fund (Golfl

g L4,676,09g $

Interest
Rate

3,566,045 g '1.9,242,133

Outstanding
at June 30,

2009 IssuedProject Redeemed

Outstanding
at June 30,

20t0

Municipal Golf Course...
Surplus P¡oceeds from Landfill to Golf Course.,....
Surplus Proceeds from Landfill to Golf Course. . . . .

Total Golf enterprise fund $ 2,422,237 $ $ (1es,e31) $ 2,226,306

4.73%

4.93%

4.93%

1,,925,000 $

393,8'14
$ (150,000) $

(36,528)

(e,403)

1,775,000

357,286

94,020
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for golf course enterprise fund bonds and notes payable in
fufure fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year lnterest Total

2011,.......... $

201.2..........
2013..........
2074..........
2015..........
201.6..........
2077........,.
2018.,..,,....
2019..........
2020..........
2021..........
2022..........

Principal

795,930 $
195,930

195,930

194,788

194,788

194,7gg

194,7gg
"lgg,7gg

1gg,7gg

189,788

145,000

145,000

"108,224

99,402

90,384

81,,322

71,855

62,054

52,236

42,408

32,817

23,216

74,790

7,395

304,1,54

295,332

286,374

276,170

266,643

256,842

247,024

232,"196

222,605

21,3,004

759,790

152,395

g 2,226,306 $ 696,103 $ 2,9'1,2,409

The Town receives subsidy assistance from the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust (MWPAT).
Principal and interest on the outstanding bonds for MWPAT is subsidized over the life of the bonds to assist the
Town in the repayment of this future debt. During fiscal year 2070, the Town's subsidy totaled approximately
$104,000. Future subsidies total approximately $928,000. The amount of MWPAT bonds outstanding at June 30,
2010, totaled 94,634,786.

The Massachusetts Water Resource Authorify (MWRA) operates an Infiltration/Inflow Financial Assistance
Program for community owned collection systems. For each community approved for the project, financial
assistance receìved from the MWRA consists of a grant and non-interest bearing loan (payable in five equal
annual installments). At June 30,20-10, the outstanding principal amount of these loans totaled 977,385.

During fiscal year 2010, the Town issued 95,M7,000 of general obligation bonds for building remodeling,
departmental equipment and water mains lining.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201.0

The Town is subject to various debt limits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt under the
normal debt limit. At June 30, 2010, the Town had the following authorized and unissued debt:

Purpose Amount

High School Construction...,....... $
Community Senior Center Cons...
High school feasibility.
Community center plans..
Pipe relining.,.....
Capital Equipment.
Parking garage..
Sewer MWRA.
Fire engine.
High school feasibility..
Charles River dam..
Voter reader machines..
Updates to fire station,,

*

g 102,970,465

* Represents short-term debt outstanding as of June 30,201.0

86,740,000
10,000,000

2,000,000
1,000,000

800,000

640,000

540,000

436,865
400,000
250,000

97,000

76,000
600
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended june 30, 2010

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Balance

June 30,

2009 Increases Decreases

Balance

fune 30,

2070

Current
Portion

Governmental Activities:
Bonds and notes payable............ $

Workers' compensation claims....
Landfill closure.........
Net OPEB obligation.....
Compensated absences..............

Business-type Activities:
Bonds and notes payable
Net OPEB obligation.....
Compensated absences..............

Total. . . . . . . . . . . .

50,824,006 $ 14,843,134 g (8,280,7e6)

40,779,306
255,830

61,2,774

7,732,743
'J.,443,353

3,547,000 $

11,,242,175

53,959

(4,81e,529) $

(80,752)
(34,043)

(3,345,872)

39,506,777

1.75,078

s78,731

75,629,046
-t,497,312

fi 4,832,471

87,539

34,043

1.49,731,

g s,1.03,784s 57,386,944

76,758,3"10 g 1.,977,385 S

778,934 252,897
46,550 2,647

(1,833,301)

(75,264)
16,902,394

356,567
49,797

'1,,962,047

4,920

g 76,983,794 2,232,924 $ (1,908,s65) $ "17,308:t52 g "t,966,967

The governmental activities long-term liabilities are generally liquidated by the general fund.

NOTE 10 - RISK FINANCING

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft ol damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial insurance.

The Town provides health insurance through its participation in the West Suburban Health Group (Group), a

non-profit trust comprised of 11 towns, one school district and two educational collaboratives. The Town
recognizes the cost of providing health insurance by recording its share (depending on the plan, contribution
rates range between 50% and 90%) of insurance premiums paid to the Group in the general fund in the fiscal year
paid. The purpose of the Group is to pay medical claims of its members' employees and their covered
dependents.

The Town participates in a premium-based workers'compensation plan. In prior years, the Town was self-
insured for workers' compensation and is liable for the payment of certai¡ claims from those periods. The claims
are administered by a third party administrator and are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis from annual
appropriations. The estimated future liability is based on history and injury type. The estimated liability atJune
30, 2010, totaled 9175,078,
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended |une 30, 2010

NOTE 11- PENSION PLAN

PIønDesciption -The Town contributes to the System, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the Natick Contributory Retirement Board. Substantially all employees of the
Town are members of the System, except for public school teachers and certain administrators who are members
of the Commonwealth's Teachers Retirement System,

Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. The System
provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Cost-of-living adjustments
granted between 1981 and 1,997 and any increases in other benefits imposed by the Commonwealth's state law
during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the pension fund. Cost-of-living
adjustments granted aflær 1997 must be authorized by the Natick Contributory Retirement Board and are borne
by the System. The System issues a publicly available report in accordance with guidelines established by the
Commonwealth's Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission. That report may be obtained by
contacting the System located at 13 East Central Street, Natick, Massachuselts 07760.

PlanMembership - AtDecember31,2009, the System's membership consists of the following:

Active members. 588

Inactive members. 65

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benenfits... 380

Total.....

Funding Policy - Chapter 32 of MGL governs the contributions of plan members and the Town. Plan members
are required to contribute to the System at rates ranging from 5% to "17% of annual covered compensation. The
Town is required to pay into the System its share of the system-wide actuarial determined cont¡ibution that is

apportioned among the employers based on annual covered payroll.

Contributions are recognized as additions in the period when they become due pursuant to formal commitments,
statutory or contractual requirements. Benefits and refunds are recognized as deductions when incurred and
administrative expenses are funded through investment earnings.

Annuøl Pension Cost - The Town's contributions to the System for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2070, 2009, and
2008 were $5,335,519, 95,255,474, and $5,460,965, respectively. The current and two preceding fiscal years
apportionment of the annual pension cost between the two employers required the Town to contribute935% of
the total. At June 30,201.0, the Town did not have a net pension obligation.

Funded Støtus and Funding Progress - The funded status of the plan at January L, 2008, the most recent actuarial
valuation date, is as follows:

Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded

UAAL as a

Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (A) (B) (B-A) (^/B) (c) ((B-A)/c)

01/07/08 $ 90,885,080 $ 13't,268,314 g 40,393,234 69.2% g 25,775,476 "156.7%

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following the notes to
the financial statements, present multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets
are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AAL for benefits.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended |une 30, 2010

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation is as follows:

Valuation date: January 1,,2008

Actuarial cost method:

Amortization method:

Entry age normal

4.50% increasing

Remaining amortization period: 18 years from July 1,2008

Asset valuation method:

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return:

Projected salary increases;

5 year smoothing of market value returns greater (less) than expected

Cost of living adjustments:

8.00%

Based on years of service, ranging from7.00% decreasing to 4.75% after 9

years of service for Group 1 employees, ranging fromT.00% decreasing
to 5.00% after 7 years for service for Group 2 employees and ranging
from 8.00% decreasing to 5.25% after 8 years for Group 4 employees

3.00% of first $12,000 of retirement income

Legølly Required Reseroe Accounts -The balance in the System's legally required reserves as of December 31,
2009 are as follows:

Description Amount Purpose

Annuity Savings Fund.. , $ 25,260,664 Active members' cont¡ibution balance
Aruruity Reserve Fund.. 8,003,596 Retired members' contribution account
Pension Reserve Fund. .. 3"1,270,976 Amounts appropriated to fund future retirement
Pension Fund.. 6,132,226 Remaining net assets

Noncontributory Retirement Allowønce - The Town pays the entire retirement allowance for certain retirees who
are eligible for noncontributory benefits and are not members of the System. The general fund expenditure for
fiscal year 2010 totaled approximately $91,000.

NOTE 12 - MASSACHUSETTS TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Public school teachers and certain administrators are members of the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System,
to which the Town does not contribute. Pension benefits and administrative expenses paid by the Teachers
Retirement Board are the legal responsibility of the Commonwealth. The amount of these on-behalf payments
totaled approximately fi9,275,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2070, and, accordingly, are reported in the
general fund as intergovernmental revenues and pension expenditures.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended ]une 30, 2010

NOTE 13 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

PlanDescription -T}i.e Town provides health and life insurance coverage for its retirees and their survivors
(hereinafter referred to as the "Plan") as a single-employer defined benefit Other Post Employment Benefit
(OPEB) plan. Chapter 328 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions. Changes to
plan design and contribution rates must be accomplished through the collective bargaining process. The Plan
does not issue a stand alone financial report since there are no assets legally segregated for the sole purpose of
paying benefits under the Plan.

The number of participants as of July 1,, 2008, the latest actuarial valuation, is as follows:

Active employees.. 1.,179

Retired employees and spouses...... 788

Total 1,967

Funiling Policy -The contribution requirements of Plan members and the Town are established and may be
amended by the Town. The required health insurance contribution rates of Plan members and the Town
(including Medicare Part B) are 50o/o , respectively. The Plan members and Town each contribute 50 % towards a

$5,000 term life insurance premium. The Town currently contributes enough money to the Plan to satisfy current
obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis. The costs of administering the Plan are paid by the Town.

Annuøl OPEB Cost øndNet OPEB Obligøtion - The Town's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an actuarially determined amount that is calculated in
accordance with the parameters set forth in GASB Statement #45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components
of the Town's annual OPEB cost for the year, the actual amount contributed to the plan, and changes in the Town
net OPEB obligation:

Amount

Annual required contribution $ 11,509,898
Interest on net OPEB obligation.,. .. 31.6,467

Adjustmentto amualrequired contribution........ (331,299)

Annual OPEB cost.... 1,1,,495,066

Contributions made. .. (3,427,"136)

Increase in net OPEB obligation. 8,073,930
Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year., 7,917,677

Net OPEB obligation at end of year.. $ 15,985,607
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Trend information regarding annual pension cost, the percentage of the annual pension cost contributed and the
net pension obligation is as follows:

* Transition year

Funded Støtus ønd Funding Progress - The funded status of the Plan at July 7, 2008, the most recent actuarial
valuation, was as follows:

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability (AAL)
Projected Unit

Credit
(B)

"11-1,743,502 177,743,502

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial

Value of
Assets

(A)

Unfunded

AAL
(UAAL)

(B-A)

Funded
Ratio

(A/B)

UAAL as a

Percentage

of Covered

Payroll

((B-A)/c)

786.8%

Fiscal Year
Ending

June 30, 2009*......

June30,2070........

Annual
OPEB Cost
(AOPEBC)

70,908,261,

7'1,,495,066

Percentage

of AOPEBC
Contributed

27.5%

29.8y,

Covered

Payroll
(c)

07/01,/08 $ g 59,832,750

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far i¡to the fufure. Examples include assumptions about future
employmenf mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Methods ønd Assumptions - Projections of benefits for fi¡rancial reporting purposes are based on the substantive
Plan (the Plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at
the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and Plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.

The significant methods and

Valuation date:

Actuarial cost method:

Amortization method:

Remaining amortization period :

Interest discount rate:

Healthcare/Medical cost trend rate:

Projected salary increases:

Town of Nøtick, Møssøchusetts

assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation are as follows;

July 1, 2008

Entry Age Normal

Level percentage of projected payroll

30 years at July 1,2008

4.00%

10.00% beginning in 2008 to an ultimate level o15.00% in 2013

2.50% arurually
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Allocøtion of AOPEBC - AOPEBC costs were allocated to the Town's functions as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General government $
Public safety.
Education.
Public works.
Health and human services..
Culture and recreation,....
Library.

Total AOPEBC - governmental activities. . . .. ..,

Business-Type Activities:
Water and sewer..
Golf

Total AOPEBC - business-type activities. . . .. .. .

Total AOPEBC..... $

459,803

2,1,95,558

7,506,278

5t7,278
"149,436

"126,446

287,377

1,1,,242,1,75

229,901,

22,990

252,897

1"1,495,066

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS

The Town has entered into, or is planning to enter into, contracts totaling approximately $103,000,000 for water
main projects, roadway projects, high school construction projects, community center plans and the purchase of
departmental equipment.

NOTE 15 - LANDFILL POSTCLOSURE CARE

State and federal laws and regulations required the Town to close its old landfill site when it stopped accepting
waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site after closure. The Town had
operated a solid waste landfill that ceased operations in 1988 and, accordingly, was subsequently capped and
funded via long-term debt. The Town has reflected $578,731as the estimated landfill post-closure care liability at
June 30, 2010. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.

NOTE 16 - CONTINGENCIES

Various other legal actions and claims are pendrng against the Town. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties,
and the outcome of individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liabilily, if
any, at June 30, 201'0, cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting liabilify should not materially
affect the financial position of the Town at June 30,2010.

The Town participates in a number of federal award programs. Although the grant programs have been audited
in accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 through June 30, 2010, these

Programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount, tf any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the Town expects such amounts,
ú any, to be immaterial.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 17 - PRIOR PERIOD RECLASSIFICATIONS

The beginning fund balance of the nonmajor governmental funds has been restated from fi75,266,564 to
975,427,082 and the beginning fund balance of the high school project major fund has been restated from $0 to
($160,518) to reflect the reclassification of the high school project fund from a nonmajor governmental fund to a
major governmental fund. Additionally, the beginning fund balance of the general fund has been restated from
$10,198,558 to $73,072,636 and the beginning fund balance of the stabilizat:ron major fund has been restated from
fi2,874,078 to $0 to reflect the reclassification of the stabilizattonmajor fund to the general fund.

NOTE 1.8 - IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

Statement had no impact on the financial statements.

Statement had no impact on the financial statements.

The implementation of this Statement had no impact on the financial statements.

Statements on Auditing Standqrds. The implementation of this Statement had no impact on the financial
statements.

Statement had no impact on the financial statements.

NOTE 19 - FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB PRONOUCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the following statements:

implemented during fiscal year 2011. The Town is currently evaluating the effect that this Statement will
have on its basic financial statements.

required to be implemented during fiscal yeat 2012. This pronouncement will not impact the basic
financial statements.

2011. The Town is currently evaluating the effect that this Statement will have on its basic financial
statements.

These pronouncements will be implemented on their respective due dates,
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

P¡io¡ Year
Enrumbra¡ces

md Continuing
App¡opriatiom

REVENUES
Real estate md personal ptoperty taxes $
Motor vehicle md othe¡ excise taxes

Hotel/motel tax . .

Taxliens.....
Payments in lieu of taxes

Trash disposaì....
lìntergovemental ,, ,,, .,
Special assessments,.
Penalties md interest on taxes..
Licenses md pemits.
Fines and forfeitures
Departmental md othe¡.... , ,.

Investmenl income..
Other..........

TOTAL REVENUNS

EXPENDITURES
Cunent:

94,760,225 950,689 95,770,91,4

Original
Budget

$ 74,798,909

3,ó00,000

800,000

32,500

965,272

70,563,544
15,000

250,000

1,050,000

210,000

2,725,000
350,000

Supplemental
Appropriations
md T¡ansfers

s 950,689

Final
Budget

s 75,749,598

3,600,000

800,000

32,500

965,272

10,563,544

15,000

250,000

1,050,000

210,000

2,725,000

350,000

General govement,,.,,.. ....
Public safety . . , . . . . . . .

Educalion
Public works
Health md humm senices,,,....
Culhrre md ¡ecreation ,....
Library.....
Pemion benefits .. ..

Employee benefits
Property md liability insurilce ..., ..

Stateudcoub,charges.., . . . . .

Debt service:
Prircipal
Interest, ,.

TOTAL EXPENDITURES.

551,490

279,762

379,679

796,947

7,785
501

43,029

2,052,527

4,480,672
77,674,962

43,735,861

7,347,776

986,509

573,776

7,845,703

5,271,467

74,395,784

496,750

7,540,299

5,726,887

2,031,847

99,447,567

(733,764)

7,202789
2

747,382
45,000

58s

376

(7s4,e99t

5,000

(e3,550)

(42,9e4t

4,898,338

13,096,313

44,175,482

8,292,099

1,033,294

574,802
7,M6,079
5,271,467

74,283,814

501,150

7,540,299

5,033,337

1,988,U7

EXCFS9 (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDTTURES.... .

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

Trmsle¡s in....

(2,0s2,52n e,687,342) (24,478) (6,764,Un

975,767

350,757
(973,6531

102,475,261

3,667,748
(7,328,6s3)Trmsfers out ...,,,.

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE..,.., ,.

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OFYEAR ,,,

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR. ,,.

See notes to required supplementary hfomalion

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

3,376,997

(3ss,000)

(2,0s2,52n

"12,050,726 72,050,726

6 9,997,599 5 70,324,787 S

2,967,997 (622,902) 2,339,095

(7,72s,345) (647,380' (4,425,252)

62

72,050,726 72,050,726

77,402,746 $ 7,624,874
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Cunenl Year Actual and
Encumbrances Encumbrmces Va¡iance

and Conlinuing md Continuirg Positive/
Appropriations Applopriations (Negative)Actual

100,411

g 7s,877,742 $

3,739,367

748,707

336,755
28292

903,950

10,835,843

22,22-l

351,613

7,256,719

754,309

2,490,076
462957

- $ 75,871,702 $
- 3,739,367
_ 748,707

- 33ô15s
- 28,2C2

- 903,9s0

- 10,835,843

- )) ))1

- 3s1,613
- 7,256,719

- 154,309

- 2,490,076

- 462957
- 100,411

r27,504
739,367

(57,293)

336,155

ø,2A8)
(61,322')

7/2,299
7,227

101,613

206,719

(s5,691)

365,076

712,957

100411

1,590,808

491,917

255,I27
74\520

100,æ3
104,810

3,590

30,376

2ß,220

600,116

62,488

177,736

224,970

97,307,722

3,889,685

72,777,734
43,6V5,639

7,465,974

927,2i5
568,693

1,815,004

5,243,247

13,660.686

431,,162

1,362,563

4,812,367

!,9I4,s42

98,443,9i1,

97,307,722

4,4t6,4?7
14841,792
4,040,962
I,I97ß66

928,484
571,212

7,875,643

5¡243,247

13,683,698

438,662

7,36?"563

4,87L567
78745/'2 74,305

70a,25\,8s9 2,224,402

3,667,7ß
(1,328,6s3)

(1,782,20e) (7,766,eâ) (ze4e\3n

2,339,095

72,050,726 72,050,726

8 73,207,A12 $ 10,283,198 $ 11,4140084 5 J,B7s,2t0
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PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES

The following schedules provide information related to the System as a whole, for which the Town is one
participating employer ;

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS (SYSTEM)

Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded

UAAL as a

Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (A) (B) (B-A) ( /B) (c) ((B-A)/c)

01/01/08 $ 90,885,080 $ 131,268,314 g 40,383,234 69,2% g 25,775,476 1,56.7%

01,/01,/06 79,234,306 "t78,903,286 39,668,990 66.6% 24,8't4,593 1.59.9%

01,/01,/04 70,246,877 709,024,236 38,777,359 64.4% 22,170,379 174.9%
01./01,/02 68,995,592 700,572,515 31,586,923 68.6% 22,056,144 1.43.2%

01/01/00 64,669,-t53 89,699,360 25,019,207 72.1.% 78,677,743 734.4%
01,/01,/99 63,402,639 g6,939,39g 23,536,760 72.9% 77,647,644 733.4%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (SYSTEM)

Annually
Required Percentage of

Year Ended Contributions ARC
December 31 (ARC) Contributed (%)

2004 $ 4,481,279 100
2005 4,941.,775 100
2006 5,059,655 100

2007 5,547,638 100
2009 5,334,374 100
2009 5,41.8,1.51. 100

The following schedule provides information related to the Town's portion of the System's ARC:

TOWN SHARE OF SYSTEM ARC

Fiscal Year
Percentage of Town ARC

ARC as a Percentage of
Ended ARC Contributed (%) System ARC (%)

2005 g 4,427,412 100
2006 4,769,061 100
2007 4,983,669 100
2008 5,460,965 100
2009 5,255,41.4 100

201,0 5,335,519 100

98.7%

985%
98,5%

98.5%

98,5%

985%
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE A - BUDGETARY - GAAP RECONCILIATION

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Massachusetts Accounting System basis of accounting
(established by the Commonwealth) is followed, which differs from the GAAP basis of accounting, A
reconciliation of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the general fund for the fiscal year ended june 30,

2010, is presented below:

Revenues

Budgetary basis as reported on the schedule of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balance - budget and actual... ................... $ 97,301,,722 $

Adjustments
Net change in recording 60-day receipts..
Net change in recording tax refunds payable......
To record MWPAT debt service subsidy..
Net change in recording receivables..
Net change in court judgments. . . ... .

To record activity for MTRS on-behalf payments....
To record encumbrances and continuing appropriations......

Sub-total.. ,.

Reclassifications
Stabilization investment income..,.....
Stabilization transfers, net.....

GAAP basis as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances.....

Other
Financing

Expenditures Sources (Uses)

't00,250,859 $ 2,339,095

19,1.57

(950,751)

9,275,374
(1.,766,e28)

1.06,827,71't

('1,28,245)

(3,274,222)

19,157

153,186

9,275,374

"103,346,972

6,737

2,339,095

(r50,7s1)

2,-199,344fi 103,353,709 fi 1.06,827,717
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